
***AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE*** 
Please contact Hermiston City Hall, 180 NE 2nd St, Hermiston, OR 97838 (Phone No. 541-567-5521) at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting time if you need an accommodation. TTY and TDD users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 
or 711. 

H E R M I S T O N 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting November 9, 2016 

A G E N D A 
~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ . .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ .. ~  .. ~ .. ~ .. ~ 

1. CALL TO ORDER - 7:00 p.m.

2. MINUTES of the September 14, 2016 regular planning commission meeting.

3. NEW BUSINESS

A.  Review Sign Operation- Seventh Day Adventist Church-855 W Highland Ave

B.  Replat- NW Housing Alternatives 4N2811CD Tax Lots 1800, 25100, 25200, 25300 & 25400
      Action – Motion to Approve  

C.  Final Plat- Desert Sky Estates Phase 5, 4N 28 15AD Tax Lot 4000, SW Cottonwood Dr, 15 lots 
      Action- Motion to Approve 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

5. PLANNER COMMENTS AND UNSCHEDULED COMMUNICATIONS

A. Planner comments 
B. Unscheduled communications and general discussion 

6. ADJOURN



HERMISTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Regular Meeting                                September 14, 2016
   
Chairman Saylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Commissioners Doherty, Flaiz, Caplinger, Fialka, 
Hamm, Erz and Medelez were present.  Commissioner Rebman was absent.  
 
Minutes 
Minutes of the July 13, 2016 regular Planning Commission meeting were approved.   
 
Hearing-Major Variance-Continued from July 13, 2016  
The planning commission is continuing the hearing to consider a request for a major variance.  The request 
must be approved by the planning commission subject to the criteria established in §157.225 of the 
Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  The applicant wishes to obtain a variance from §157.057 (D) 3 of the 
Hermiston Code of Ordinances which establishes parking requirements in the Fairgrounds Overlay zone.  
The applicant, Eastern Oregon Trade & Event Center (EOTEC), is requesting that the City grant a variance 
thereby allowing the number of occupants on the property equal to the number of allowed persons per 
parking space. The property is described as 4N 28 13 Tax Lots 800 and 1400 and is located at 1705 E 
Airport Rd. 
 
There were no conflicts of interest or ex parte contacts declared.   As this is a continued hearing, the 
guidelines were previously read. 
 
 

City Planner Spencer presented the staff report and answered questions from the commissioners.   
 
Testimony 
George Anderson, 475 E Main St- Mr. Anderson stated that he has 33 years interest in moving the fair and 
forming EOTEC.  He feels this is a win-win.  He is concerned that the Planning Commission is seeking to 
strangle the project with conditions.  Mr. Anderson thinks condition number three has major problems. He 
feels the permitting process is a major proposal.  He also thinks that grassing the overflow parking area is 
not reasonable. 
  
Byron Smith, Chairman of the Board for EOTEC- The conditions have been reviewed and they appreciate 
the flexibility of allowing the first fair and rodeo to be held prior to grassing the overflow parking lot.  It 
would be great to have the option of gravel or irrigated grass for the overflow parking lot.  The board is 
open to using a shuttle service for attendees.  They would like to see the number of attendees before the 
event management plan is required be a little higher.  
 
Dan Dorran, Vice-Chair of EOTEC board and member of the County Fair Board-   The irrigation and 
rutting is something the fair has addressed for many years and have a good handle on these issues.  He also 
would like to thank the commissioners for their flexibility.  Handicap parking is currently addressed by the 
fair.  They use designated golf carts to shuttle people from the handicap spaces to the fair entrance.  
 
Dennis Doherty, 1045 S 9th Place-   Mr. Doherty stated he thinks people would like to see the public facility 
built completely and built right.  He would like to see all the improvements that the money is available for.  
He has attended many different fairs and has never parked on anything but grass or gravel.  Mr. Doherty 
read from the Inter-Governmental Agreement signed by the City and County.  Provisions in the agreement 
state that the EOTEC authority is appointed by, responsible to and acting on behalf of Umatilla County and 
the City of Hermiston.  The board is accountable to the people represented.  The Board’s books and records 
are to be made available for review.   He would like to encourage the commissioners to be as generous as 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 2 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

they can in establishing the conditions, but put in what is needed and trust the governing bodies to do what 
is right.  
 
Kim Puzey, 970 SE 5th St, member of the EOTEC board- Mr. Puzey’s primary role on the board is to raise 
public money.  He would like to ask the commissioner for flexibility so there is greater latitude to access 
public dollars.  
 
Mike Kay, 1002 SE Banker Drive- Mr. Kay spoke on his own behalf.  He has worked on many of these 
projects.  He encouraged the commissioner’s to look at fire suppression and dust control in the overflow 
parking lot.  He suggested that the condition state that adequate pathways be provided from the parking lot 
to the event center and to trust the board and EOTEC committee to interpret it.  He stated that 1,000 people 
is not that many and would encourage the commissioners to increase that number to 2,000 or 3,000 people.   
 
Larry Givens, 84462 Ringer Road, Milton-Freewater- Mr. Givens is the chair of North East Area 
Commission on Transportation.  Improvements and additions to Ott Road have been discussed.  They are 
aware of the added needs at the intersection.   
 
The hearing was closed at 8:07 PM.   
 

Findings of Fact 
Exceptional or extraordinary conditions apply to the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zone or vicinity, which conditions are a result of lot size, shape, topography or 
other circumstances over which the applicant has no control. 
 

1. EOTEC is a unique facility within the city and county and one of a limited number statewide.  The 
facility is designed to accommodate both small events and large regional events.  Operation of 
EOTEC is bound by an existing Inter-Governmental Agreement between the City of Hermiston and 
Umatilla County.   

2. The economics of developing a community event center and a regional trade and event center or 
fairgrounds are not equivalent.  A community event center will generally have a daily use that is 
smaller and locally focused on small scale events.  Regional trade shows or county fairs are rarer 
events which shall be specifically planned on a case by case basis depending upon the size and type 
of crowd anticipated. 

3. The impact of developing paved parking sufficient to accommodate 2,808 paved parking spaces is 
fiscally prohibitive and environmentally unsound due to the need for large stormwater storage and 
treatment facilities for nearly 20 acres of paved surface. 

4. The public benefit of 2,808 paved parking spaces is not proportional to the construction cost and 
ongoing maintenance costs associated with creating 20+ acres of paving when only a small fraction 
is used in conjunction with most events. 

5. Alternative design scenarios proposed by the city such as gravel access paths, irrigated grass parking 
for overflow, and the potential use of the grass area for recreation purposes provide a better public 
benefit by lowering construction cost while simultaneously providing an opportunity for community 
use during otherwise passive times. 

The variance is necessary for the preservation of a property right of the applicant that is substantially 
the same as is possessed by owners of other property in the same zone or vicinity. 

6. The Hermiston Conference Center is a 21,000 square foot building which was constructed with 152 
parking spaces on-site.  This is a similar facility to the event center as both the event center and the 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 3 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

existing conference center require a one space per 100 square feet parking ratio.  The existing 
conference center also makes use of overflow parking for very large events.   

7. The two developments are not entirely equivalent due to the existing conference center’s 
geographically constrained setting and repurposing of an existing building during development 
rather than greenfield development in EOTEC’s case.  However, the basic property right at issue is 
the same in both cases where a smaller economically feasible parking lot is used for daily operations 
and overflow is used for much larger events. 

The authorization of the variance shall not be materially detrimental to the purposes of the zoning 
ordinance, be injurious to property in the zone or vicinity in which the property is located, or be 
otherwise detrimental to the objectives of any development pattern or policy. 

8. The city establishes parking requirements in §157.176 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.  These 
parking standards are designed to provide a reasonable number of parking spaces to accommodate 
what is considered the likely typical heavy use scenario.  The space requirement is not intended to 
accommodate a “worst-case” scenario.  A worst-case scenario cannot be adequately planned for and 
accommodated unless excessive land is developed and significant financial investment in 
infrastructure is made.  The return on investment for a worst-case parking lot development results in 
rarely used parking which must be lit, maintained, drained, sealed, and periodically resurfaced, even 
though it might see no more than seven days of use per year. 

9. The planning commission finds that the 675 spaces installed are sufficient for most typical uses of 
EOTEC, even in heavy use scenarios when the event center and rodeo grounds are both in use.  The 
additional overflow area will provide sufficient worst-case scenario parking during the Umatilla 
County Fair or other regionally significant events provided the permitting requirements are applied 
to each event with attendance in excess of 2,000 and the overflow parking is designed in compliance 
with the conditions of approval. 

10. The planning commission finds that the issuance of a variance has been publicly vetted through 
public hearings on July 13 and September 14, 2016.  Furthermore, the planning commission finds 
that each issuance of a variance is considered on a case by case basis and no precedent is established 
through the issuance of a variance and the variance does not materially harm the purpose of the 
zoning ordinance. 

11. The planning commission finds that the conditions of approval as adopted will prevent injury to 
properties in the vicinity of EOTEC. 

It is impractical to maintain the zoning ordinance requirements and at the same time build, erect or 
use the structure. 

12. Construction of the site with 2,808 paved parking spaces presents an impractical barrier to the use of 
the facility.  Creation of 2,808 paved parking spaces is not financially feasible for EOTEC while 
simultaneously constructing a useable fairgrounds facility and rodeo arena. 

13. The planning commission finds that the 675 proposed paved parking spaces are sufficient to 
accommodate the majority of uses on the site.  The 675 spaces are sufficient to meet the occupancy 
requirement of the event center (346 spaces) and the rodeo grounds (329 spaces) during most 
activities.  As noted in Finding #9, the event permit process and construction of overflow parking 
will mitigate parking issues associated with exceptionally large events. 

The variance requested is the minimum variance from the provisions and standards of the zoning 
ordinance which will alleviate the hardship. 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 4 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

14. There is sufficient paved parking on the site to accommodate any event in the event center.  There is 
sufficient paved parking on the site to accommodate typical uses in the rodeo arena.  There is 
sufficient paved parking to accommodate any use in the barns and 4-H center.  The planning 
commission finds that it is acceptable to provide 675 paved parking spaces and 2,200 overflow 
parking spaces to accommodate typical EOTEC operations.  Constructing additional paved parking 
is not merited at this time. 

15. The planning commission will require EOTEC to submit event reports for an annual review by the 
planning commission each January beginning in January 2018.  If as a result of the annual review, 
the planning commission determines that additional paved parking is warranted, EOTEC will be 
responsible for constructing additional paved parking in the overflow area as directed by the 
planning commission prior to the next Umatilla County Fair. 

 
Conditions of Approval 

 
1. Approval of the variance is effective only for the site plan attached to this report as Exhibit C.  The 

site plan consists of 675 paved parking spaces, the event center as constructed and occupied in May 
of 2016, three proposed animal barns, two restroom buildings, and one rodeo arena.  Any additional 
public buildings, except for additional free-standing restrooms or similar non-display or event space, 
shall require a new variance application. 

2. The planning commission will review the operations of EOTEC at the regular meeting each January 
for the first five years of operations beginning in January of 2018.  The public will be invited to 
provide testimony.  The planning commission will reserve the right to extend the five-year review 
period as deemed appropriate by the planning commission.  At the annual review session, the 
planning commission shall review an annual report to be prepared by EOTEC which shall contain 
the following information: 

a. A comprehensive list of all events at ETOEC during the previous calendar year. 
b. A supplemental report of each event with an attendance of 2,000 or more.  Reporting of 

events with an attendance of 2,000 or more shall be made on the report form attached to this 
report as Exhibit D. 

3. All events which have an anticipated attendance of 2,000 or more shall submit a permit application 
on the form attached as Exhibit E and event management plan to be reviewed by the city.  The 
permit application must be submitted at least three weeks in advance of the proposed event.  Each 
application shall include: 

a. A parking plan approved by the fire marshal detailing the overflow parking layout, location 
of fire lanes, and other items required by the fire district for fire and life safety access. 

b. A traffic control plan in accordance with the event management plan developed by Lancaster 
Engineering and reviewed by the police department. 

c. A site plan for each event which shows location of temporary structures, temporary 
restrooms, and ADA facilities.  The site plan shall be reviewed and approved by the building 
official. 

d. Evidence of notice to neighboring property owners in advance of large events. 
4. EOTEC shall provide off-site parking and shuttle service for the 2017 county fair.  An estimate of 

ridership shall be submitted to the planning commission for review at the January 2018 review 
session.  The planning commission and EOTEC shall collaboratively determine if it is necessary to 
provide an off-site shuttle for future events. 

5. When events utilizing the overflow parking are anticipated to extend more than 30 minutes after 
dusk, temporary lighting shall be provided for the overflow lot.  A lighting plan for the spacing of 
the mobile light towers shall be included as part of the large event permit and the use of mobile 
lighting shall be documented in the event report. 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 5 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

6. EOTEC shall submit a plan and timeline for a permanent overflow parking lot construction for 
review at the January 2018 Planning Commission meeting.  The final design of the overflow parking 
lot shall include pedestrian circulation.  

 
Comissioner Caplinger moved and Commissioner Doherty seconded to approve the Findings of Fact as 
amended.   Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Hamm moved and Commissioner Erz seconded to approve the variance with the revised 
conditions.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
New Business 
Replat-The City of Hermiston has received an application for a replat of property located on SE Fifth Street 
approximately 190 feet north of E Highland Ave.  The property is approximately 1.58 acres and is presently 
vacant.  The proposal will replat 5 existing lots into one new lot.  The replatted lot will be approximately 
1.58 acres.  NW Housing Alternatives has purchased the property and is applying for the replat.  The 
property is zoned Multi-Family Residential (R-3) and is described as a 4N 28 11CD Tax Lots 1800, 25100, 
25200, 25300, and 25400.   
 
City Planner Spencer presented the staff report.  The criteria that are applicable to the decision to accept the 
proposed replat are contained in §154.15 through §154.46, §154.60 through §154.66, §157.027 and 
§157.101 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.   
 
Staff received a letter from nearby property owners opposed to the building of apartments on the property.  
The letter stated instances of criminal activity and has been forwarded to the Chief of Police.    
 
Chapter 154: Subdivisions 
 
Design Standards 
 
§154.15 Relation to Adjoining Street System. 
 
The property is bordered by SE 5th Street.  No new street connections are proposed. 
 
§154.16 Street and Alley Width.   
 
No new streets are proposed as part of this subdivision.  The existing right-of-way for SE 5th Street is 50 feet 
in accordance with city standards. 
 
§154.17 Easements.   
 
A fifteen-foot drainage and utility easement shall be dedicated on the final plat along the entire frontage of 
the parcel.  It is not clear from the proposed plat if the existing irrigation ditch is protected by an easement.  
It is typical for facilities of the Hermiston Irrigation District to be protected by an easement.  The survey 
shall clarify if an easement exists prior to the city signing the plat and it shall be shown on the plat.  Any 
development on the property will be required to respect and preserve the easement. 
 
§154.18 Blocks.   
 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 6 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

The proposed subdivision sits at a mid-block point.  There is an existing alley along the north boundary of 
the replat.  The city requires new street connections when blocks exceed 600 feet.  The property is 
approximately 360 feet in width.  No cross street is required and the block design standards are satisfied. 
 
§154.19 Lots.   
 
The minimum lot size in the R-3 zone is 6,000 square feet.  There is no maximum size in the R-3 zone.  
Multi-family lots require at least 2,000 square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit.  The lot will be 
approximately 1.58 acres or 68,824 square feet.  The parcel abuts a public street for at least 25 feet. 
 
§154.20 Character of Development.   
 
The property is presently vacant.  It may be developed with single-family, duplex, or multi-family dwellings 
in the future. 
 
§154.21 Parks, School Sites and the Like. 
 
The comprehensive plan and parks master plan do not indicate a need for any parks or schools in the 
vicinity of the proposed development.   
 
Minimum Improvements Required 
 
§154.60 Permanent Markers 
 
Permanent markers shall be set as shown on the final plat in accordance with ORS 92.050 through 92.080. 
 
154.61 General Improvements 
 
The site is adjacent to SE 5th Street.  SE 5th Street is currently improved with a chip seal surface and no other 
street improvements.  As a condition of approval the property owner will be required to sign a street 
improvement agreement for SE 5th Street.  The street improvement agreement will bind the property to 
participate in or install half street paving, curbing, drainage, and sidewalk improvements along the property 
frontage.  In addition, should the property develop in the intervening time, installation of these 
improvements will automatically be required under the provisions of §157.164 of the Hermiston Code of 
Ordinances. 
 
§154.62 Water Lines.   
 
All lots are served or can be served in the future by an existing municipal water line in SE 5th Street.  
Depending on the scope of potential future development, the water department will assess the capacity of 
the water line at the time a development application is made. 
 
§154.63 Sanitary Sewer System.   
 
All lots are served or can be served in the future by an existing municipal sanitary sewer line in SE 5th 
Street. 
 
Preliminary Plat 
 



Hermiston Planning Commission      Page 7 of 8                                                             September 14, 2016 
 

 

Staff has reviewed the preliminary plat and determined the plat is prepared in accordance with §154.35(B) 
of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.   
 

Chapter 157: Zoning 
 

§157.027 Multi-Family Residential Zone (R-3) 
The minimum lot size in the R-3 zone is 6,000 square feet.  There is no maximum size in the R-3 zone.  
Multi-family lots require at least 2,000 square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit.  The lot will be 
approximately 1.58 acres or 68,824 square feet.  The parcel abuts a public street for at least 25 feet. 
 
§157.101 Development Hazard Overlay Zone (DH) 
Comprehensive Plan Figure 12 shows the northern portion of this property as an area subject to 
development hazards due to a high water table.  In accordance with §157.101 of the Hermiston Code of 
Ordinances, the city will prohibit the outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals or the underground storage of 
gasoline and diesel fuels unless an evaluation by a registered engineer is presented stating that the 
development will not contribute to groundwater pollution. 
 
Testimony 
Annette Kirkpatrick, Hermiston Irrigation District Manager, 366 E Hurlburt Ave- Federal Bureau of 
Reclamation easements of 50 feet from the centerline exists on the irrigation ditch.  Buildings would be 
positioned on the diagonal to fit within the lot, without building in the easement.  The district is hopeful the 
drain would be piped for the portion on lot 1800.  It is currently an open drainage ditch and it would be an 
improvement to be piped.  
 
Shari Humphrey, 451 SE 5th St- Ms. Humphrey has been working with neighbors with single family homes 
trying to keep the neighborhood clean and kept up.  Her property receives foot traffic trespassing and 
committing vandalism.  She does not want another complex.  Ms. Humphrey frequently calls the abatement 
officer as the lots are not kept clean.  She stated she does not want apartments there. 
 
Renata Morgan, 610 SE 5th St- Ms. Morgan asked neighbors around her about this and the response was that 
they did not want apartments across the street or up the road from them.  She stated it is horrible and bad 
enough that they are on 6th street.  Ms.  Morgan stated she recently built a big shop on her property and will 
have to move if apartments are across the street from her.  She feels people want to build homes on the lot 
and are not interested when she tells them the lots are zoned R-3.   
 

Staff Recommendation 
 

Staff has reviewed the proposed partition plat and found that it is prepared in accordance with all 
requirements of the Code of Ordinances.  Staff recommends the planning commission approve the replat 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District.  The 
city will not sign the final plat until the irrigation district is satisfied and signs the final plat. 

2. The applicant shall sign a street improvement agreement for future improvements to SE 5th Street 
adjacent to the property.  The street improvement agreement shall commit the property to participate 
in the future improvement of SE 5th Street, including half street paving, curbing, drainage, and 
sidewalks. 

3. In accordance with §157.101 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, the property shall not be used 
for the outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals or the underground storage of gasoline and diesel 
fuel. 



Hermiston Planning Commission     Page 8 of 8           September 14, 2016 

4. An easement of 15 feet in width shall be added to the west property line of the property.  This
easement shall be for drainage, sidewalk, and utilities.

5. The existing drainage canal on the property shall be amended to reflect any existing easements on
the property unless the irrigation district and surveyor present evidence that no easement protects the
canal.

Commissioners discussed the stated concerns and issues regarding the neighborhood compatibility. 

Commissioner Hamm moved to deny the preliminary replat based on insufficient evidence submitted in 
support of Hermiston Code of Ordinances 154.20.  Commissioner Flaiz seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed unanimously.   

Planner Comments and Unscheduled Communications 
The Holiday Inn Express is on schedule to open in November of 2016. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:25PM. 



Planning Department
180 NE 2nd Street 

Hermiston, OR 97838 
Phone: (541)567-5521 
Fax: (541)567-5530 

planning@hermiston.or.us 

To: Planning Commission 
From: Clinton Spencer, City Planner 
Subject: Seventh Day Adventist Church Sign Operation Review 
Date: November 1, 2016 

The Planning Commission approved a request from Louis Hanson on behalf of the Seventh Day 
Adventist Church located at 855 W Highland Ave for a major variance from the maximum sign 
height of eight feet in a low density residential area at the May 11, 2016 meeting.  As a condition 
of approval, the Planning Commission is reviewing operation of the sign at the November 9, 2016 
Planning Commission meeting to consider usage restrictions.    

Section §155.35(C) of the Hermiston Municipal Code of Ordinances establishes that free standing 
signs in low density residential areas are limited to eight feet in height.  The property is zoned 
Single-Family Residential which is classified as a low density residential zone.  The variance 
allowed the sign to be installed at a height of 14 feet.  The sign face is 4 feet high and 8 feet wide 
or 32 square feet which is consistent with the sign size for conditional uses in the R-1 zone.  With 
the exception of the sign height, the size and placement on the property meet the requirements of 
the sign code. 

Discussion during the hearing for the variance included comments that operating the sign on a 
busy street in a residential neighborhood could be distracting to drivers and a nuisance to 
residents.   The condition of approval for a review period was placed on the variance as a means 
to allow sufficient time for comments and feedback to be provided on the sign’s usage.   

The sign has been operational for a period of six months.  Planning staff has not received any 
complaints in regards to the operation of the sign.  The church has operated the sign at levels of 
brightness, color and in a manner that helps minimize driving hazards and maintain the character 
of the neighborhood.    

A public notice of proposed land use action was physically placed on the property on October 
27, 2016.  No comments have been received as a result.   

Staff Recommendation 

The Planning Commission may choose to extend the review period of the sign operation to a future 
date, place usage restrictions on sign operation, or consider the condition fulfilled.     



SW
8thS t

W Duane Ave

W Highland Ave

SW
 9t

h S
t

4N2810CD124004N2810CD12500 4N2810CD12600 4N2810CD12700 4N2810CD12801 4N2810CD13000 4N2810CD13100 4N2810CD13200

4N2810CD13700

4N2810CD138004N2810CD140004N2810CD14001

4N2810CD14200

4N2810CD143004N2810CD144004N2810CD14500

4N2815BA00700

4N2815BA00800

4N2815BA00901

4N2815BA00902

4N2815BA00903

4N2815BA00904

4N2815BA01000 4N2815BA011024N2815BA01103 4N2815BA01200
4N2815BA01300

4N2815BA01400
4N2815BA01402

4N2815BA01500

Legend
Area of Proposed Variance
Property Line
City Limits

0 100 20050
Feet ±

Sign Location



To: Planning Commission 
From: Clinton Spencer, City Planner 
Subject: Replat – NW Housing Alternatives 
Date: November 1, 2016 

NW Housing Alternatives has resubmitted the replat application which was denied by the planning 
commission in September.  The planning commission’s denial of the application was based on the 
commission’s determination that there was no evidence submitted demonstrating compliance with 
§154.20 relating to the character of development.  Following the planning commission’s denial,
NW Housing Alternatives could choose to appeal the denial, resubmit the application with 
additional evidence, or find an alternative development plan.  NW Housing Alternatives chose to 
resubmit their application with additional evidence.  A copy of the applicant’s narrative is attached 
to this report. 

The replat is located on SE Fifth Street approximately 190 feet north of E Highland Ave.  The 
property is approximately 1.58 acres and is presently vacant.  The proposal will replat 5 existing 
lots into one new lot.  The replatted lot will be approximately 1.58 acres.  NW Housing Alternatives 
has purchased the property and is applying for the replat.  The property is zoned Multi-Family 
Residential (R-3) and is described as a 4N 28 11CD Tax Lots 1800, 25100, 25200, 25300, and 
25400.  

The replat is proposed to simplify future redevelopment of the parcel through the elimination of 
existing lot lines.  As of the date of this staff report, NW Housing Alternatives has not submitted 
a plan for building on the reconfigured lot.  It is staff’s understanding that NW Housing 
Alternatives plans to develop multi-family housing on the parcel in the future.  Future development 
and building is a separate review process for the city. 

Public notice was provided for the proposed replat.  Notice of the proposed land use action was 
mailed by direct mail to all property owners within 100 feet on October 26, 2016.  A copy of the 
notice of the November planning commission meeting was also provided to all signatories to the 
petition in opposition from the September meeting as a courtesy.  A sign informing the public of 
the proposal was placed on the property on October 26, 2016.   

Planning Department
180 NE 2nd Street 

Hermiston, OR 97838 
Phone: (541)567-5521 
Fax: (541)567-5530 

planning@hermiston.or.us 



2 of 4 

The criteria that are applicable to the decision to accept the proposed replat are contained in 
§154.15 through §154.46, §154.60 through §154.66, §157.027 and §157.101 of the Hermiston
Code of Ordinances.  

Chapter 154: Subdivisions 

Design Standards 

§154.15 Relation to Adjoining Street System.

The property is bordered by SE 5th Street.  No new street connections are proposed. 

§154.16 Street and Alley Width.

No new streets are proposed as part of this subdivision.  The existing right-of-way for SE 5th Street 
is 50 feet in accordance with city standards. 

§154.17 Easements.

A fifteen-foot drainage and utility easement shall be dedicated on the final plat along the entire 
frontage of the parcel.   This easement is shown.  The existing irrigation easement is also indicated 
on the plat.  

§154.18 Blocks.

The proposed subdivision sits at a mid-block point.  There is an existing alley along the north 
boundary of the replat.  The city requires new street connections when blocks exceed 600 feet. 
The property is approximately 360 feet in width.  No cross street is required and the block design 
standards are satisfied. 

§154.19 Lots.

The minimum lot size in the R-3 zone is 6,000 square feet.  There is no maximum size in the R-3 
zone.  Multi-family lots require at least 2,000 square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit.  The 
lot will be approximately 1.58 acres or 68,824 square feet.  The parcel abuts a public street for at 
least 25 feet. 

§154.20 Character of Development.

Supplemental materials accompanying the application address some of the goals of §154.20. 
Specifically, the applicant notes that the underlying zoning and comprehensive plan designations 
of the property permit multi-family housing as a permitted use.  The site is directly abutting two 
existing multi-family developments on the east property line.  The development goal is to construct 
an additional 20 units on the property.  A community building and playground are planned.  The 
applicant indicates that the irrigation ditch will be piped as requested by the irrigation district.  On-
site management is planned. 

§154.21 Parks, School Sites and the Like.



3 of 4 

The comprehensive plan and parks master plan do not indicate a need for any parks or schools in 
the vicinity of the proposed development.   

Minimum Improvements Required 

§154.60 Permanent Markers

Permanent markers shall be set as shown on the final plat in accordance with ORS 92.050 through 
92.080. 

154.61 General Improvements 

The site is adjacent to SE 5th Street.  SE 5th Street is currently improved with a chip seal surface 
and no other street improvements.  As a condition of approval the property owner will be required 
to sign a street improvement agreement for SE 5th Street.  The street improvement agreement will 
bind the property to participate in or install half street paving, curbing, drainage, and sidewalk 
improvements along the property frontage.  In addition, should the property develop in the 
intervening time, installation of these improvements will automatically be required under the 
provisions of §157.164 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. 

§154.62 Water Lines.

All lots are served or can be served in the future by an existing municipal water line in SE 5th 
Street.  Depending on the scope of potential future development, the water department will assess 
the capacity of the water line at the time a development application is made. 

§154.63 Sanitary Sewer System.

All lots are served or can be served in the future by an existing municipal sanitary sewer line in 
SE 5th Street. 

Preliminary Plat 

Staff has reviewed the preliminary plat and determined the plat is prepared in accordance with 
§154.35(B) of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances.

Chapter 157: Zoning 

§157.027 Multi-Family Residential Zone (R-3)
The minimum lot size in the R-3 zone is 6,000 square feet.  There is no maximum size in the R-3 
zone.  Multi-family lots require at least 2,000 square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit.  The 
lot will be approximately 1.58 acres or 68,824 square feet.  The parcel abuts a public street for at 
least 25 feet. 

§157.101 Development Hazard Overlay Zone (DH)
Comprehensive Plan Figure 12 shows the northern portion of this property as an area subject to 
development hazards due to a high water table.  In accordance with §157.101 of the Hermiston 



4 of 4 

Code of Ordinances, the city will prohibit the outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals or the 
underground storage of gasoline and diesel fuels unless an evaluation by a registered engineer is 
presented stating that the development will not contribute to groundwater pollution. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff has reviewed the proposed partition plat and found that it is prepared in accordance with all 
requirements of the Code of Ordinances.  Staff recommends the planning commission approve the 
replat subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation
District.  The city will not sign the final plat until the irrigation district is satisfied and signs
the final plat.

2. The applicant shall sign a street improvement agreement for future improvements to SE 5th

Street adjacent to the property.  The street improvement agreement shall commit the
property to participate in the future improvement of SE 5th Street, including half street
paving, curbing, drainage, and sidewalks.

3. In accordance with §157.101 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, the property shall not
be used for the outdoor storage of hazardous chemicals or the underground storage of
gasoline and diesel fuel.

4. An easement of 15 feet in width shall be added to the west property line of the property.
This easement shall be for drainage, sidewalk, and utilities.



E PINE AVE

E HIGHLAND AVE

SE
 5T

H 
ST SE

 6T
H 

ST

0050003600

01003
03700

00903 00900 00902 00800 00803 00400 00300

0100104700 01702 01704

01901 01900

01700
01002

04600

04800

25400 25300

04502

25100
25200

04501

04500

04100

04200

01800

01701

01000

03900 07100

03801

23000 24000 25000
01600

06501
22000 21000 2000001500

00700
03800

04000

06500
17000 18000 19000

Legend
100 Foot Notification Area 
Area of Proposed Replat
Property Line
City Limits

0 100 20050
Feet ±











OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

1 

MODEL LEASE FOR SUBSIDIZED PROGRAMS 

1. Parties and Dwelling Unit: The parties to this Agreement are Cascade Management, Inc. (authorized signor)
referred to as the Landlord, and  referred to as the Tenant. The Landlord leases to the Tenant unit number  located at    ,   in the project 
known as Cottonwood II. 

2. Length of Time (Term): The initial term of this Agreement shall begin on  and end on .  After the initial term ends the Agreement will
continue for successive terms of one month each unless automatically terminated as permitted by paragraph 23 of this Agreement. 

3. Rent: The Tenant agrees to pay $   0.00 for the partial month ending on .  After that, Tenant agrees to pay a rent of  per month.  This
amount is due on the first day of the month at Cottonwood II.  The Tenant understands this monthly rent is less than the market 
(unsubsidized) rent due on this unit. This lower rent is available either because the mortgage on this project is subsidized by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and/or because HUD makes monthly payments to the Landlord on behalf of the 
Tenant. The amount, if any, that HUD makes available monthly on behalf of the Tenant is called the tenant assistance payment and is 
shown on the "Assistance Payment" line of the Owner’s Certification of Compliance with HUD’s Tenant Eligibility and Rent Procedures 
which is Attachment No.1 to this Agreement. 

4. Changes in the Tenant’s Share of the Rent: The Tenant agrees that the amount of rent the Tenant pays and/or the amount of
assistance that HUD pays on behalf of the Tenant may be changed during the term of this Agreement if: 

a. HUD or the Contract Administrator (such as a Public Housing Agency) determines, in accordance with HUD procedures, an increase in
rents is needed; 
b. HUD or the Contract Administrator changes any allowance for utilities or services considered in computing the Tenant's share of the
rent; 
c. the income, the number of persons in the Tenant's household or other factors considered in calculating the Tenant's rent change and
HUD procedures provide that the Tenant's rent or assistance payment be adjusted to reflect the change; 
d. changes in the Tenant's rent or assistance payment are required by HUD's recertification or subsidy termination procedures;

e. HUD's procedures for computing the Tenant's assistance payment or rent change; or

f. the Tenant fails to provide information on his/her income, family composition or other factors as required by the Landlord.

The Landlord agrees to implement changes in the Tenant's rent or tenant assistance payment only in accordance with the time frames and 
administrative procedures set forth in HUD's handbooks, instructions and regulations related to administration of multifamily subsidy 
programs.  The Landlord agrees to give the Tenant at least 30 days advance written notice of any increase in the Tenant's rent except as 
noted in paragraphs 11, 15 or 17.  The Notice will state the new amount the Tenant is required to pay, the date the new amount is effective, 
and the reasons for the change in rent.  The Notice will also advise the Tenant that he/she may meet with the Landlord to discuss the rent 
change. 

5. Charges for Late Payments and Returned Checks: If the Tenant does not pay the full amount of the rent shown in paragraph 3 by the
end of the 5th day of the month, the Landlord may collect a fee of $5 on the 6th day of the month.  Thereafter, the Landlord may collect $1 
for each additional day the rent remains unpaid during the month it is due. The Landlord may not terminate this Agreement for failure to 
pay late charges, but may terminate this Agreement for non-payment of rent as explained in paragraph 23.  The Landlord may collect a fee 
of $actual cost on the second or any additional time a check is not honored for payment (bounces).  The charges discussed in this 
paragraph are in addition to the regular monthly rent payable by the Tenant. 

6. Condition of Dwelling Unit: By signing this Agreement the Tenant acknowledges the unit is safe, clean and in good condition.  The
Tenant agrees all appliances and equipment in the unit are in good working order except as described in the Unit Inspection Report that is 
Attachment No. 2 to this Agreement.  The Tenant also agrees the Landlord has made no promises to decorate, alter, repair or improve the 
unit, except as listed on the Unit Inspection Report. 

7. Charges for Utilities and Services: The following charts describe how the cost of utilities and services related to occupancy of the unit
will be paid.  The Tenant agrees that these charts accurately describe the utilities and services paid by the Landlord and those paid by the 
Tenant. 

a. The Tenant must pay for the utilities in column (1). Payments should be made directly to the appropriate utility company.  The items



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

2 

in column (2) are included in the Tenant's rent. 

      (1)          (2) 
Put "x" by any Type of Put "x" by any    
Utility Tenant Utility        Utility included 
Pays directly       in Tenant Rent 
 ______________    Heat         ______________ 
_______________ Light, Electric     ______________ 
_______________ Cooking       ______________ 
_______________ Water       ______X_______ 

 Other (Specify) 
_______________   Sewer/Garbage  ______X_______ 

b. The Tenant agrees to pay the Landlord the amount shown in column (3) on the date the rent is due.  The Landlord certifies that HUD
had authorized him/her to collect the type of charges shown in column (3) and the amount shown in column (3) do not exceed the amounts 
authorized by HUD. (3) 

Show $ Amount Tenant Pays to Landlord in 
Addition to Rent     

Parking        $_____NA__________        
Other (Specify)  

  NA   $ _____NA__________   

8. Security Deposits: The Tenant has deposited  with the Landlord.  The Landlord will hold this security deposit for the period the Tenant
occupies the unit. After the Tenant has moved from the unit, the Landlord will determine whether the Tenant is eligible for a refund of any 
or all of the security deposit. The amount of the refund will be determined in accordance with the following conditions and procedures. 

a. The Tenant will be eligible for a refund of the security deposit only if the Tenant provided the Landlord with the 30-day written notice
of intent to move required by paragraph 23, unless the Tenant was unable to give the notice for reasons beyond his/her control. 
b. After the Tenant has moved from the unit, the Landlord will inspect the unit and complete another Unit Inspection Report.  The
Landlord will permit the Tenant to participate in the inspection if the Tenant so requests. 
c. The Landlord will refund to the Tenant the amount of security deposit plus interest computed at ______%, beginning NA, less any
amount needed to pay the cost of: 
 (1) unpaid rent; 

(2) damages that are not due to normal wear and tear and are not listed on the Unit Inspection Report; 
(3) charges for late payment of rent and returned checks as described in paragraph 5; and 
(4) charges for unreturned keys as described in paragraph 9. 

d. The Landlord agrees to refund the amount computed in paragraph 8c within 30 days after the Tenant has permanently moved out of the
unit, returned possession of the unit to the Landlord, and given his/her new address to the Landlord.  The Landlord will also give the 
Tenant a written list of charges that were subtracted from the deposit.  If the Tenant disagrees with the Landlord concerning the amounts 
deducted and asks to meet with the Landlord, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant and informally discuss the disputed charges. 
e. If the unit is rented by more than one person, the Tenants agree they will work out the details of dividing any refund among themselves.
The Landlord may pay the refund to any Tenant identified in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement. 
f. The Tenant understands that the Landlord will not count the security deposit towards the last month's rent or towards repair charges
owed by the Tenant in accordance with paragraph 11. 

9. Keys and Locks: The Tenant agrees not to install additional or different locks or gates on any doors or windows of the unit without the
written permission of the Landlord. If the Landlord approves the Tenant's request to install such locks, the Tenant agrees to provide the 
Landlord with a key for each lock. When this Agreement ends, the Tenant agrees to return all keys to the dwelling unit to the Landlord. 
The Landlord may charge the Tenant $1 for each key not returned. 

10. Maintenance:
a. The Landlord agrees to:

(1) regularly clean all common areas of the project; 
(2) maintain the common areas and facilities in a safe condition; 
(3) arrange for collection and removal of trash and garbage; 
(4) maintain all equipment and appliances in safe and working order; 



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

3 

(5) make necessary repairs with reasonable promptness; 
(6) maintain exterior lighting in good working order; 
(7) provide extermination services, as necessary; and 
(8) maintain grounds and shrubs. 

b. The Tenant agrees to:
(1) keep the unit clean; 
(2) use all appliances, fixtures and equipment in a safe manner and only for the purposes for which they are intended;  
(3) not litter the grounds or common areas of the project;  
(4) not destroy, deface, damage or remove any part of the unit, common areas, or project grounds; 
(5) give the Landlord prompt notice of any defects in the plumbing, fixtures, appliances, heating and cooling equipment or    any 
other part of the unit or related facilities; and 
(6) remove garbage and other waste from the unit in a clean and safe manner. 

11. Damages: Whenever damage is caused by carelessness, misuse, or neglect on the part of the Tenant, his/her family or visitors, the
Tenant agrees to pay: 

a. the cost of all repairs and do so within 30 days after receipt of the Landlord's demand for the repair charges; and
b. rent for the period the unit is damaged whether or not the unit is habitable.  The Tenant understands that HUD will not make assistance
payments for any period in which the unit is not habitable.  For any such period, the Tenant agrees to pay the HUD-approved market rent 
rather than the Tenant rent shown in paragraph 3 of this Agreement. 

12. Restrictions on Alterations: No alterations, addition, or improvements shall be made in or to the premises without the prior consent of
the Landlord in writing.  The Landlord agrees to provide reasonable accommodation to an otherwise eligible tenant’s disability, including 
making changes to rules, policies, or procedures, and making and paying for structural alterations to a unit or common areas.  The 
Landlord is not required to provide accommodations that constitute a fundamental alteration to the Landlord’s program or which would 
pose a substantial financial and administrative hardship.  See the regulations at 24 CFR Part 8.  In addition, if a requested structural 
modification does pose a substantial financial and administrative hardship, the Landlord must then allow the tenant to make and pay for the 
modification in accordance with the Fair Housing Act. 

13. General Restrictions: The Tenant must live in the unit and the unit must be the Tenant's only place of residence.  The Tenant shall use
the premises only as a private dwelling for himself/herself and the individuals listed in Owner’s Certification of Compliance with HUD’s 
Tenant Eligibility and Rent Procedures, Attachment 1.  The Tenant agrees to permit other individuals to reside in the unit only after 
obtaining the prior written approval of the Landlord.  The Tenant agrees not to: 

a. sublet or assign the unit, or any part of the unit;
b. use the unit for unlawful purposes;
c. engage in or permit unlawful activities in the unit, in the common areas or on the project grounds;
d. have pets or animals of any kind in the unit without the prior written permission of the Landlord but the Landlord will allow the tenant
to keep an animal needed as a reasonable accommodation to the tenant’s disability, and will allow animals to accompany visitors with 
disabilities who need such animals as an accommodation to their disabilities; or 
e. make or permit noises or acts that will disturb the right or comfort of neighbors.  The Tenant agrees to keep the volume of any radio,
phonograph, television or musical instrument at a level that will not disturb the neighbors. 

14. Rules: The Tenant agrees to obey the House Rules that are Attachment No. 3 to this Agreement.  The Tenant agrees to obey additional
rules established after the effective date of this Agreement if: 

a. the rules are reasonably related to the safety, care and cleanliness of the building and the safety, comfort and convenience of the
Tenants; and 
b. the Tenant receives written notice of the proposed rule at least 30 days before the rule is enforced.

15. Regularly Scheduled Recertifications: Every year around the 1st day of , the Landlord will request the Tenant to report the income
and composition of the Tenant's household and to supply any other information required by HUD for the purposes of determining the 
Tenant's rent and assistance payment, if any.  The Tenant agrees to provide accurate statements of this information and to do so by the date 
specified in the Landlord's request.  The Landlord will verify the information supplied by the Tenant and use the verified information to 
recompute the amount of the Tenant's rent and assistance payment, if any. 



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

4 

a. If the Tenant does not submit the required recertification information by the date specified in the Landlord's request, the Landlord may
impose the following penalties. The Landlord may implement these penalties only in accordance with the administrative procedures and 
time frames specified in HUD's regulations, handbooks and instructions related to the administration of multifamily subsidy programs. 

(1) Require the Tenant to pay the higher, HUD-approved market rent for the unit. 
(2) Implement any increase in rent resulting from the recertification processing without providing the 30-day notice otherwise 
required by paragraph 4 of this Agreement. 

b. The Tenant may request to meet with the Landlord to discuss any change in rent or assistance payment resulting from the recertification
processing.  If the Tenant requests such a meeting, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant and discuss how the Tenant's rent and 
assistance payment, if any, were computed. 

16. Reporting Changes Between Regularly Scheduled Recertifications:
a. If any of the following changes occur, the Tenant agrees to advise the Landlord immediately.

(1) Any household member moves out of the unit. 
(2) An adult member of the household who was reported as unemployed on the most recent certification or recertification obtains 
employment. 
(3) The household's income cumulatively increases by $200 or more a month. 

b. The Tenant may report any decrease in income or any change in other factors considered in calculating the Tenant's rent.  Unless the
Landlord has confirmation that the decrease in income or change in other factors will last less than one month, the Landlord will verify the 
information and make the appropriate rent reduction.  However, if the Tenant's income will be partially or fully restored within two 
months, the Landlord may delay the certification process until the new income is known, but the rent reduction will be retroactive and the 
Landlord may not evict the Tenant for nonpayment of rent due during the period of the reported decrease and the completion of the 
certification process.  The Tenant has thirty days after receiving written notice of any rent due for the above described time period to pay 
or the Landlord can evict for nonpayment of rent.  (Revised 3/22/89) 
c. If the Tenant does not advise the Landlord of these interim changes, the Landlord may increase the Tenant's rent to the HUD-approved
market rent.  The Landlord may do so only in accordance with the time frames and administrative procedures set forth in HUD's 
regulations, handbooks and instructions on the administration of multifamily subsidy programs. 
d. The Tenant may request to meet with the Landlord to discuss how any change in income or other factors affected his/her rent or
assistance payment, if any.  If the Tenant requests such a meeting, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant and explain how the 
Tenant's rent or assistance payment, if any, was computed.  

17. Removal of Subsidy:
a. The Tenant understands that assistance made available on his/her behalf may be terminated if events in either item 1 or 2 below occur.
Termination of assistance means that the Landlord may make the assistance available to another Tenant and the Tenant's rent will be 
recomputed.  In addition, if the Tenant's assistance is terminated because of criterion (1) below, the Tenant will be required to pay the 
HUD-approved market rent for the unit. 
(1) The Tenant does not provide the Landlord with the information or reports required by paragraph 15 or 16 within 10 calendar days after 
receipt of the Landlord's notice of intent to terminate the Tenant's assistance payment. 
(2) The amount the Tenant would be required to pay towards rent and utilities under HUD rules and regulations equals the Family Gross 
Rent shown on Attachment 1. 

b. The Landlord agrees to give the Tenant written notice of the proposed termination. The notice will advise the Tenant that, during the ten
calendar days following the date of the notice, he/she may request to meet with the Landlord to discuss the proposed termination of 
assistance. If the Tenant requests a discussion of the proposed termination, the Landlord agrees to meet with the Tenant. 

c. Termination of assistance shall not affect the Tenant's other rights under this Agreement, including the right to occupy the unit.
Assistance may subsequently be reinstated if the Tenant submits the income or other data required by HUD procedures, the Landlord 
determines the Tenant is eligible for assistance, and assistance is available. 

18. Tenant Obligation to Repay: If the Tenant submits false information on any application, certification or request for interim
adjustment or does not report interim changes in family income or other factors as required by paragraph 16 of this Agreement, and as a 
result, is charged a rent less than the amount required by HUD's rent formulas, the Tenant agrees to reimburse the Landlord for the 
difference between the rent he/she should have paid and the rent he/she was charged.  The Tenant is not required to reimburse the Landlord 
for undercharges caused solely by the Landlord's failure to follow HUD's procedures for computing rent or assistance payments. 



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

5 

19. Size of Dwelling: The Tenant understands that HUD requires the Landlord to assign in accordance with the Landlord’s written
occupancy standards.  These standards include consideration of unit size, relationship of family members, age and sex of family members 
and family preference.  If the Tenant is or becomes eligible for a different size unit, and the required size unit becomes available, the 
Tenant agrees to: 

a. move within 30 days after the Landlord notifies him/her that a unit of the required size is available within the project; or
b. remain in the same unit and pay the HUD-approved market rent.

20. Access by Landlord:

a. The Landlord agrees to enter the unit only during reasonable hours, to provide reasonable advance notice of his/her intent to enter the
unit, and to enter the unit only after receiving the Tenant's consent to do so, except when urgency situations make such notices impossible 
or except under paragraph (c) below. 
b. The Tenant consents in advance to the following entries into the unit:
i) The Tenant agrees to permit the Landlord, his/her agents or other persons, when authorized by the Landlord, to enter the unit for the
purpose of making reasonable repairs and periodic inspections. 

(ii) After the Tenant has given a notice of intent to move the Tenant agrees to permit the Landlord to show the unit to prospective tenants 
during reasonable hours. 
c. If the Tenant moves before this Agreement ends, the Landlord may enter the unit to decorate, remodel, alter or otherwise prepare the
unit for re-occupancy. 

21. Discrimination Prohibited: The Landlord agrees not to discriminate based upon race, color, religion, creed, national origin, sex, age,
familial status, and disability. 

22. Change in Rental Agreement: The Landlord may with the prior approval of HUD change the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.  Any changes will become effective only at the end of the initial term or a successive term.  The Landlord must notify the 
Tenant of any change and must offer the Tenant a new Agreement or an amendment to the existing Agreement.  The Tenant must receive 
the notice at least 60 days before the proposed effective date of the change.  The Tenant may accept the changed terms and conditions by 
signing the new Agreement or the amendment to the existing Agreement and return it to the Landlord. The Tenant may reject the changed 
terms and conditions by giving the Landlord written notice that he/she intends to terminate the tenancy. The Tenant must give such notice 
at least 30 days before the proposed change will go into effect. If the Tenant does not accept the amended Agreement, the Landlord may 
require Tenant to move from the project as provided in paragraph 23. 

23. Termination of Tenancy:
a. To terminate this Agreement, the Tenant must give the Landlord 30 days written notice before moving from the unit. .
b. Any termination of this Agreement by the Landlord must be carried out in accordance with HUD regulations, State and local law, and
the terms of this Agreement.  
c. The Landlord may terminate this Agreement for the following reasons:

(1) the Tenant's material noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement; 
(2) the Tenants material failure to carry out obligations under any State Landlord and Tenant Act; 
(3) drug related criminal activity engaged in on or near the premises, by any tenant, household member, or guest, and any such 
activity engaged in on the premises by any other person under the tenant’s control;  
(4) determination made by the Landlord that a household member is illegally using a drug; 
(5) determination made by the Landlord that a pattern of illegal use of a drug interferes with the health, safety, or right to peaceful 
enjoyment of the premises by other residents; 
(6) criminal activity by a tenant, any member of the tenant’s household, a guest or another person under the tenant’s control:  (a) 
that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents (including property management 
staff residing on the premises); or (b) that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of their residences by persons 
residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises; 
(7) if the tenant is fleeing to avoid prosecution, or custody or confinement after conviction, for a crime, or attempt to commit a 
crime, that is a felony under the laws of the place from which the individual flees, or that in the case of the State of New Jersey, is 
a high misdemeanor; 



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

6 

(8) if the tenant is violating a condition of probation or parole under Federal or State law; 
(9) determination made by the Landlord that a household member’s abuse or pattern of abuse of alcohol threatens the health, 
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents; 
(10) if the Landlord determines that the tenant, any member of the tenant’s household, a guest or another person under the tenant’s 
control has engaged in the criminal activity, regardless of whether the tenant, any member of the tenant’s household, a guest or 
another person under the tenant’s control has been arrested or convicted for such activity. 

d. The Landlord may terminate this Agreement for other good cause, which includes, but is not limited to, the tenant’s refusal to accept
change to this agreement.  Terminations for “other good cause” may only be effective as of the end of any initial or successive term. 

The term material noncompliance with the lease includes: (1) one or more substantial violations of the lease; (2) repeated minor violations 
of the lease that:  (a) disrupt the livability of the project, (b) adversely affect the health or safety of any person or the right of any tenant to 
the quiet enjoyment of the leased premises and related project facilities, (c) interfere with the management of the project, or (d) have an 
adverse financial effect on the project; (3) failure of the tenant to timely supply all required information on the income and composition, or 
eligibility factors, of the tenant household (including, but not limited to, failure to meet the disclosure and verification requirements for 
Social Security Numbers, or failure to sign and submit consent forms for the obtaining of wage and claim information from State Wage 
Information Collection Agencies), and (4) non-payment of rent or any other financial obligation due under the lease beyond any grace 
period permitted under State Law.  The payment of rent or any other financial obligation due under the lease after the due date but within 
the grace period permitted under State Law constitutes a minor violation. 

e. If the Landlord proposes to terminate this Agreement, the Landlord agrees to give the Tenant written notice and the grounds of the
proposed termination.  If the Landlord is terminating this Agreement for "other good cause," the termination notice must be mailed to the 
Tenant and hand-delivered to the dwelling unit in the manner required by HUD at least 30 days before the date the Tenant will be required 
to move from the unit and in accordance with State law requirements.  Notices of proposed termination for other reasons must be given in 
accordance with any time frames set forth in State and local law.  Any HUD-required notice period may run concurrently with any notice 
period required by State or local law. All termination notices must: 
 specify the date this Agreement will be terminated;
 state the grounds for termination with enough detail for the Tenant to prepare a defense;
 advise the Tenant that he/she has 10 days within which to discuss the proposed termination of tenancy with the Landlord.  The 10-day

period will begin on the earlier of the date the notice was hand delivered to the unit or the day after the date the notice is mailed.  If the
Tenant requests the meeting, the Landlord agrees to discuss the proposed termination with the Tenant; and

 advise the Tenant of his/her right to defend the action in court.
f. If an eviction is initiated, the Landlord agrees to rely only upon those grounds cited in the termination notice required by paragraph (e).

24. Hazards: The Tenant shall not undertake, or permit his/her family or guests to undertake, any hazardous acts or do anything that will
increase the project's insurance premiums.  Such action constitutes a material non-compliance.  If the unit is damaged by fire, wind, or rain 
to the extent that the unit cannot be lived in and the damage is not caused or made worse by the Tenant, the Tenant will be responsible for 
rent only up to the date of destruction.  Additional rent will not accrue until the unit has been repaired to a livable condition. 

25. Penalties for Submitting False Information: Knowingly giving the Landlord false information regarding income or other factors
considered in determining Tenant's eligibility and rent is a material noncompliance with the lease subject to termination of tenancy.  In 
addition, the Tenant could become subject to penalties available under Federal law.  Those penalties include fines up to $10,000 and 
imprisonment for up to five years. 

26. Contents of this Agreement: This Agreement and its Attachments make up the entire Agreement between the Landlord and the
Tenant regarding the unit.  If any Court declares a particular provision of this Agreement to be invalid or illegal, all other terms of this 
Agreement will remain in effect and both the Landlord and the Tenant will continue to be bound by them. 

27. Attachments to the Agreement: The Tenant certifies that he/she has received a copy of this Agreement and the following
Attachments to this Agreement and understands that these Attachments are part of this Agreement. 
a  Attachment No. 1 – Owner’s Certification of Compliance with HUD’s Tenant Eligibility and Rent Procedures, form HUD-50059 
b. Attachment No. 2 - Unit Inspection Report.
c. Attachment No. 3 - House Rules (If any).

28. Tenants’ rights to organize. Landlord agrees to allow tenant and tenant organizers to conduct on the property the activities related to
the establishment or operation of a tenant organization set out in accordance with HUD requirements. 



OMB Approval 2502-0204 
Exp 06/30/2017 

Form HUD-90105-a 
12/2007 

7 

29.  Tenant Income Verification. The Tenant must promptly provide the Landlord with any letter or other notice by HUD to a member of 
the family that provides information concerning the amount or verification of family income in accordance with HUD requirements. 
 
30.  The lease agreement will terminate automatically, if the Section 8 Housing Assistance Contract terminates for any reason. 
 
31. Signatures: 
 
TENANT 
 
By: 
 
1. _________________________       ______/______/________ 2. __________________________       ______/______/_____ 
 
                                            Date signed                  Date signed 
3. _________________________       ______/______/________  
                                            Date signed           
LANDLORD 
 
By: 
 
1. _________________________      ______/______/________ 
                                          Date signed 
 
 
 
Public reporting burden – HUD is not requesting approval of any burden hours for the model leases since use of leases are a standard 
business practice in the housing rental industry.  This information is required to obtain benefits and is voluntary.  HUD may not collect this 
information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.  The request and 
required supporting documentation are sent to HUD or the Contract Administrator (CA) for approval.  The lease is a contract between the 
owner of the project and the tenant(s) that explains the terms for residing in the unit.  Leases are a standard business practice in the housing 
rental industry.  Owners are required to use the HUD model lease which includes terms normally covered by leases used in the housing 
rental industry plus terms required by HUD for the program under which the project was built and/or the program providing rental 
assistance to the tenants. 
 
This information is authorized by 24 CFR 5.360, 236.750, 880.606, 883.701, 884.215, 886.127, 891.425, 891.625 and 891.765 cover lease 
requirements and provisions.  This information is considered non-sensitive and does not require any special protection. 
 







To: Planning Commission 
From: Clinton Spencer, City Planner 
Subject: Final Plat – Desert Sky Subdivision Phase 5 
Date: November 1, 2016 

Greg Flowers has submitted a final plat for phase 5 of the Desert Sky Subdivision.  The proposed 
subdivision is located on approximately 12 acres of land west of the existing Desert Sky Estates 
development along SW Cottonwood Drive and SW Desert Sky Drive.  The property is described 
as Lot 45, Desert Sky Estates Phase 4.  The applicant proposes to create 15 lots of approximately 
9,000 square feet and one lot of 9.35 acres to be reserved for future development.  The property is 
zoned Single-Family Residential (R-1).   

The criteria that are applicable to the decision to accept the final plat are contained in §154.46 of 
the Hermiston Code of Ordinances. 

Chapter 154: Subdivisions 

§154.46 Final Plat

Per §154.46 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances, the final plat shall show: 

(A) The boundary lines of the area being subdivided, with accurate distances and bearings. 
Shown as required 

(B) The lines of all proposed streets and alleys with their width and names.  Shown as required 

(C) The accurate outline of any portions of the property intended to be dedicated or granted for 
public use.  Shown as required 

(D) The line of departure of one street from another.  Shown as required 

(E) The lines of all adjoining property and the lines of adjoining streets and alleys with their 
widths and names.  Shown as required 

(F) All lot lines together with an identification system for all lots and blocks.  Shown as 
required 

Planning Department
180 NE 2nd Street 

Hermiston, OR 97838 
Phone: (541)567-5521 
Fax: (541)567-5530 

planning@hermiston.or.us 



2 of 3 

(G) The location of all building lines and easements provided for public use, services or 
utilities.  Shown as required 

(H) All dimensions, both linear and angular, necessary for locating the boundaries of the 
subdivision, lots, streets, alleys, easements, and other areas for public or private use.  Linear 
dimensions are to be given to the nearest 1/10 of a foot.  Shown as required 

(I) All necessary curve data.  Shown as required 

(J) The location of all survey monuments and bench marks together with their descriptions. 
Shown as required 

(K) The name of the subdivision, the scale of the plat, points of the compass, and the name of 
owners or subdivider.  Shown as required 

(L) The certificate of the surveyor attesting to the accuracy of the survey and the correct 
location of all monuments shown.  Shown as required 

(M) Private restrictions and trusteeships and their periods of existence.  Should these 
restrictions or trusteeships be of such length as to make their lettering on the plat 
impracticable and thus necessitate the preparation of a separate instrument, reference to 
such instrument shall be made on the plat.  Shown as required 

(N) Acknowledgment of the owner or owners to the plat and restrictions, including dedication 
to public use of all streets, alleys, parks or other open spaces shown thereon, and the 
granting of easements required.  Shown as required 

(O) Certificates of approval for endorsement by the city council and certificate indicating its 
submission to the planning commission, together with approval for endorsement by other 
local, county and/or state authority as required by Oregon statutes.  Shown as required 

Conditions from Preliminary Plat Approval 

1. The applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation
District prior to final plat approval.  The City of Hermiston will not sign the final plat until
the applicant obtains certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District.  The applicant
shall meet this condition of approval

2. The west side of S First Street adjacent to each phase shall be improved to minor collector
standards at the time each connection is made to S First Street.  Street improvements to S
First Street shall align with existing curb and gutter to the north of the development.  The
applicant has met this condition of approval during earlier phases of construction.
This condition does not apply to Phase 5.

3. Applicant must sign an improvement agreement and shall install grading, storm drainage,
curb and gutter, sidewalks, street paving, and all service utilities for this development.  All
improvements for each phase shall comply with city standards and specifications and shall
receive final approval from the city engineer.  Improvements are still under
construction.  Final approval of improvements must be obtained prior to the city
signing the plat.



3 of 3 

4. Streetlights must be installed at the applicant’s cost.  Once installed, the City will assume
the monthly service charges.  The applicant has met this condition of approval

5. Applicant shall comply with all provisions of §92.12 of the Hermiston Code of Ordinances
relating to the control of blowing dust during all phases of construction.  The applicant
has met this condition of approval

6. The applicant shall place a notation on the final plat stating that Lots 1, 6 and 28 shall not
establish driveways on S First Street.  This condition is not applicable to Phase 5

7. The new connecting streets designated “C” and “D” on the preliminary plat shall be
designated with the SW prefix and designated as numbered streets or places based upon
the addressing grid.  The connecting street designated as “E” on the preliminary plat shall
be designated with the W prefix and designated as a named Avenue on the final plat.  The
semicircular drives designated as “A” and “B” on the preliminary plat shall be designated
with the SW prefix and be designated as named Drives on the final plat.  “D” Street has
been designated as W Condon Ave.  Since the street runs in a straight east/west
direction, when addresses were assigned for this phase, staff determined a numbered
street was confusing and required the street to be designated as an avenue instead.

8. The applicant shall be responsible for protecting groundwater flows through the
subdivision and insuring all housing is protected from possible groundwater intrusions.
The applicant has met this condition of approval

9. The applicant shall be responsible for costs associated with modification of the Moore
Avenue booster station pump sequencing.  The applicant will meet this condition of
approval when development elevations are sufficient to impact water pressure.

Staff Recommendation 

Staff has reviewed the final plat and determined it is prepared in accordance with all final plat 
requirements.  The plat is ready for approval.  Staff recommends the planning commission approve 
the final plat subject to the following conditions: 

1. Applicant shall work with and receive certification from the Hermiston Irrigation District
prior to final plat approval.  Applicant should be aware that the City of Hermiston will not
sign the final plat until the irrigation district has been satisfied and signs the final plat.



S 
1S

T 
ST

W JOSEPH AVE

SW BURNS DR

SW
 3R

D 
ST

W PHEASANT AVE

W SANDPIPER AVE

W JOHNS AVE

W WREN AVE
SW DESERT SKY DR

SW COTTONWOOD DR
SW

 6T
H 

ST

W DIVISION AVE

1400 1500 1600 1700 1800 1900 2000

2200

2300

240025002600270028002900

1101

1103

500

602

800

900

1000

1001

1200

3100

3200

3300

400

100

200

10500

1060010700

10800

10900

11000

11100 11200

11300
11400

11500
11600

118001190012000121001220012300124001250012600

1280012900 13000 13100 13300

1340013500136001370013800

200

300
400500600700800900

1300

3100
3200330034003500360037003800

3900

4000

4100 4200 4300 4400 4500
4600

4700

4800
4900 5000 5100

5200

5300
5400

5500

560057005800590060006100
6200

63006400
6500660067006800

6900 7000 7100 7200 7300
7400 7500

7600

400

10001100
1200

1300
1400150016001700

1800 1900 2000

2100 2200

23002400
2500

2600

2700
2800

290030003100320033003400

3500360037003800
3900

4000

4100

4200

4300

440045004600
4700

4800 4900

50005100

52005300

0

Legend
Area of Proposed Final Plat
Property Line
City Limits

0 200 400100
Feet ±



DATE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO.:CLIENT:

DRAWN BY:

SHEETCITY:

TOWNSHIP: RANGE:SECTION:

COUNTY:

CALC BY:

SURVEYOR:

OF

5 N. Colville St., Suite 200

Walla Walla, WA 99362-1913

509/956-3026

306/695-3488

509/547-5129 fax

PAUL BURNS 4353-00

GREG E. FLOWERS 11/01/2016

MFW MFW 1" = 100'

15 4 NORTH 28 EAST

HERMISTON UMATILLA 1 2



DATE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO.:CLIENT:

DRAWN BY:

SHEETCITY:

TOWNSHIP: RANGE:SECTION:

COUNTY:

CALC BY:

SURVEYOR:

OF

5 N. Colville St., Suite 200

Walla Walla, WA 99362-1913

509/956-3026

306/695-3488

509/547-5129 fax

PAUL BURNS 4353-00

GREG E. FLOWERS 11/01/2016

MFW MFW 1" = 100'

15 4 NORTH 28 EAST

HERMISTON UMATILLA 2 2


	110916pc for packet
	A. Planner comments

	09-14-16pc
	UDesign Standards

	PC Staff Report November
	Property Map
	Staff Report PC November resubmission
	UDesign Standards

	Property Map With Buffer
	application
	ApplicationReplat_Signed
	NW HOUSING REPLAT 5TH ST 10-5-16
	MODEL LEASE FOR SUBSIDIZED PROGRAMS

	Middleton Letter
	Staff Report PC November
	Property Map
	4353-PH5-FINALPLAT

